
AGENDA 

North Dundas 

636 St. Lawrence Street Winchester ON 

Tuesday, March 22, 2016 7:00 PM 

 Page 

1. Call Meeting to Order by Resolution  

2. Adoption of Agenda  

 a) Additions, Deletions or Amendments 

All matters listed under Consent Agenda, are considered to 

be routine and will be enacted by one motion. Should a 

Council member wish an alternative action from the 

proposed recommendation, the Council member shall 

request that this matter be moved to the appropriate section 

at this time.  

 

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature Thereof  

4. Adoption of Minutes  

 a) Regular Meeting March 8, 2016 4 - 12 

 b) Public Meeting March 8 To Consider Proposed Changes to Permit 

Fees 

13 - 14 

 c) Public Meeting March 8 To Consider Two Zoning Amendments 15 - 20 

5. Delegations  

 a) Dundas Federation of Agriculture 

Jackie Pemberton and Bernard Van der Zweep 

21 - 25 

 b) South Nation Conservation 

Bill Smirle 

 

 c) Nanda Wubs  

6. Action Requests  

 a) Finance  

  i. Treasurer's Statement of Remuneration Paid to Elected Officials 26 - 28 

Page 1 of 67



Action Request Finance 

 b) Economic Development and Communications  

 c) Public Works  

  i. Winchester Lagoon Upgrades- Class EA OCWA Engineering 

Services Proposal 

Action Request Public Works 

29 - 32 

 d) Waste Management  

  i. Garbage Compactor 

Action Request Waste Management Services 

33 - 35 

 e) Planning, Building and By-law Enforcement  

  i. Extend Road to Permit a Severance  

Action Request Planning, Building and Enforcement 

36 - 37 

 f) Recreation and Culture  

  i. 2016 Summer Staff Hires  

Action Request Recreation and Culture 

38 

 g) CAO  

  i. Chesterville Medical Clinic Lease 

Action Request CAO 

39 - 40 

 h) Clerk's Department  

7. Tenders and Quotations  

8. By-laws  

 a) By-law 2016-26 Zoning Amendment – Summers Physiotherapy 

Action Request Planning, Building and Enforcement 

41 - 51 

 b) By-law 2016-27 Building Permit Fees 

Action Request PPB 

52 - 59 

9. Consent Agenda  

 a) Fire Services Report 

Action Recommended: 

60 - 65 

Page 2 of 67



That Council receive and file for information purposes 

10. Boards and Committees  

11. Key Information  

 a) Clerk - Friends of the South Mountain Library Resource Centre 66 

12. Motions and Notices of Motions  

13. Petitions  

14. Council Comments and Concerns  

 a) Council Meeting April 26, 2016  

 b) Camp Erin 

 

 

15. Unfinished Business  

16. Closed Session  

 a) As per Section 239 (2) (c) of the Municipal Act 

a proposed or pending aquistion or disposition of land by the 

municipality or local board 

 

17. Ratification By-law  

 a) 2016-28 67 

18. Adjournment by Resolution  

  

 

Page 3 of 67



 

 

MINUTES 

 

A meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of North Dundas was held 

in Council Chambers in Winchester Village on March 8, 2016 with Mayor Duncan in the 

Chair.  

 

           ROLL CALL: Mayor: Eric Duncan 

   Deputy Mayor: Gerry Boyce 

   Councillors: Allan Armstrong, Tony Fraser, John Thompson 

   CAO: Angela Rutley 

   Treasurer: John Gareau 

   Director of Public Works: Dan Belleau 

   Director of Recreation and Culture: Meaghan Meerburg 

   Director of Planning: Calvin Pol 

   Clerk: Jo-Anne McCaslin 

1. Call Meeting to Order by Resolution  

Resolution No. 01                                             Moved by Councillor Armstrong 

                                                                            Seconded by Councillor Thompson 

THAT the meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the Township of North 

Dundas be hereby called to order. 

CARRIED 

 

2. Adoption of Agenda  

Resolution No. 02                                            Moved by Councillor Thompson 

                                                                            Seconded by Councillor Armstrong 

THAT Council approve the agenda as amended. 

CARRIED 

 

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest and General Nature Thereof - Nil 

 

4. Adoption of Minutes  

 

Resolution No. 03                                            Moved by Councillor Armstrong 

                                                                            Seconded by Councillor Thompson 

THAT the minutes of the In Camera sessions of the Council dated January 19, 2016, 

February 5, 2016 and February 17, 2016 be adopted as presented. 

CARRIED 

 

Regular Meeting March 8, 2016

Page 4 of 67



 

Resolution No. 04                                           Moved by Councillor Thompson 

                                                                            Seconded by Councillor Armstrong 

THAT the minutes of the Special Meeting of the Council of the Township of North 

Dundas, held February 5, 2016 be adopted as circulated. 

CARRIED 

 

Resolution No. 05                                             Moved by Councillor Armstrong 

                                                                            Seconded by Councillor Thompson 

THAT the Minutes of the regular meeting of the Council of the Corporation of the 

Township of North Dundas held February 17, 2016 be adopted as circulated. 

CARRIED 

 

5. Delegations - Nil 

  

6. Action Requests  

a) Finance  

b) Economic Development and Communications  

c) Public Works  

Resolution No. 06                                     Moved by Councillor Thompson 

                                                                      Seconded by Councillor Armstrong 

THAT Council accepts the petition for drainage works in the Wood Development 

as submitted by LRL Associates Ltd. relating to the placement of two culverts; 

and further authorizes the appointment of Matthew A. Ford, P. Eng. as the 

Engineer of Record to prepare a report in accordance with Section 78 of the 

Drainage Act 

CARRIED 

 

Resolution No. 07                                     Moved by Councillor Armstrong 

                                                                      Seconded by Councillor Thompson 

That the Council of the Township of North Dundas receive and accept the 2015 

Summary and Annual Reports of Water Quality Information for the North Dundas 

Drinking Water Treatment and Distribution System that was provided by Ontario 

Clean Water Agency in accordance with O. Reg 170/03 Schedule 22. 

CARRIED 

 

Resolution No. 08                                     Moved by Councillor Thompson 

                                                                      Seconded by Councillor Armstrong 

THAT the Council of the Township of North Dundas accept the three quotations 

for an electric forklift to be utilized in the mechanic’s shop, and to award the 

quotation to Gerry Boyce at the price of $6,000.00 including a successful safety 

check. 

CARRIED 

Regular Meeting March 8, 2016

Page 5 of 67



 

Resolution No. 09                                    Moved by Councillor Armstrong 

                                                                      Seconded by Councillor Thompson 

THAT the Council of the Township of North Dundas approve the following roads, 

Spruit Rd and Rodney Lane for surface treatment and authorize the Director of 

Public Works to proceed with the Tendering.   

CARRIED 

 

d) Waste Management  

 

e) Planning Building and Bylaw Enforcement  

i) Development Charge Reserve Fund Statement Chesterville Pump Station 

Resolution No. 10                                        Moved by Councillor Thompson 

                                                                    Seconded by Councillor Armstrong 

WHEREAS By-law 5-2012, contains an area-rated development charge 

reserve fund for the Chesterville Pumping Station in the Thompson 

Subdivision;                                                                                                

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Treasurer be authorized to 

transfer $1,201.73 from Account #3-3-2000-9445 TND Development Charge 

Reserve Fund (Chesterville Pumping Station) to Account #1-4-9030-9500 and 

that this transfer is deemed to be effective December 31, 2015..   

CARRIED 

 

ii) Development Charge Reserve Fund   

Resolution No. 11                                        Moved by Councillor Armstrong 

                                                                    Seconded by Councillor Thompson 

WHEREAS eligible growth-related capital expenditures relating to the 

Development Charges By-law No. 5-2012 occurred in the Township of North 

Dundas in 2015;                                                                                          

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Treasurer be authorized to 

transfer $245,070.11 from Account #3-3-2000-99590 Development Charge 

Reserve Fund to the various accounts attached as appendix “A” and that this 

transfer is deemed to be effective December 31, 2015..   

CARRIED 

 

iii) Community Care Building  

Resolution No. 12                                     Moved by Councillor Thompson 

                                                                    Seconded by Councillor Armstrong 

THAT Council hereby accepts the rezoning application as complete from the 

Winchester District Memorial Hospital and directs that the public meeting be 

held on March 22, 2016 at 7:00pm 

CARRIED 

 

Regular Meeting March 8, 2016

Page 6 of 67



 

 

f) Recreation and Culture 

Resolution No. 13                                     Moved by Councillor Armstrong 

                                                                         Seconded by Councillor Thompson 

THAT Council authorize the hiring of the following individuals as 2016 March 

Break Camp Leaders.  Paige Smith, Term 3, Patricia Barlow, Term 1, and 

Vanessa MacDonald, Term 1. (Pay in accordance with the Part Time Salary 

Wage System plus 4% Vacation Pay) 

CARRIED 

Resolution No. 14                                            Moved by Councillor Thompson 

                                                                         Seconded by Councillor Armstrong 

THAT Council authorize and direct that Robert Durant be hired for the position of 

Full-Time Facility Operator with the Recreation & Culture Department effective 

April 4, 2016.  (One year probationary period in effect.) 

CARRIED 

 

g) CAO  

Resolution No. 15                                     Moved by Councillor Fraser  

                                                                      Seconded by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

That the Council of the Township of North Dundas agree to provide the 

Winchester Curling Club with an interest free loan of $15,400 to bridge finance 

their building and equipment upgrades for a maximum six month period. 

CARRIED 

 

h) Clerks Department  

i) Chesterville Fair Designation 

 Resolution No. 16                                     Moved by Councillor Fraser  

                                                                      Seconded by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

That the Council designate the Chesterville Fair hosted by the Chesterville and 

District Agricultural Society scheduled for August 26th, 27th and 28th. 2016 as a 

“Public Event of Municipal Significance”. 

CARRIED 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Meeting March 8, 2016

Page 7 of 67



ii) Art on the Waterfront Designation  

Resolution No. 17                                     Moved by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

                                                                      Seconded by Councillor Fraser  

That the Council designate the Art on the Waterfront Festival hosted by Art on 

the Waterfront scheduled for Saturday June 4th and Sunday June 5, 2016 as a 

“Public Event of Municipal Significance” and further authorize the temporary 

closure of portions of Chesterville Main Street, Water Street and Mill Street to 

facilitate this event. 

CARRIED 

 

 

iii) Establishment of Archives Working Group 

Resolution No. 18                                     Moved by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

                                                                      Seconded by Councillor Fraser  

That the Council authorize and direct that a working group be formed to investigate 

options for the establishment of a Dundas County Archives. 

CARRIED 

iv) Livestock Valuer 

Resolution No. 19                                             Moved by Councillor Fraser  

                                                                          Seconded by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

THAT Council receive the report of Livestock Valuer Greg Holmes and authorize 

payment as follows:                                                                                                 

Bob Mattice $660.00 September 2, 2015. 

CARRIED 

 

7. Tenders and Quotations  - Nil 

8. By-laws  

Resolution No. 20                                                  Moved by Councillor Fraser  

                                                                               Seconded by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

THAT By-law 2016-17, being a By-law to amend the former Village of Chesterville 

By-law No. 04-95, as amended, be read and passed in Open Council this 8th day of 

March, 2016 (Chris Sommerville). 

CARRIED 

 

Resolution No. 21                                             Moved by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

                                                                             Seconded by Councillor Fraser  

THAT By-law 2016-21, being a By-law to authorize special charges being imposed 

on lots abutting on the Local Improvement Work completed under By-law 41-2013 in 

the Bailey Subdivision be read and passed in Open Council, signed and sealed this 

8th day of March, 2016. 

CARRIED 

 

Regular Meeting March 8, 2016

Page 8 of 67



 

Resolution No. 22                                              Moved by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

                                                                             Seconded by Councillor Fraser  

That Council defer By-law No. 2016-23.  

CARRIED 

 

Resolution No. 23                                             Moved by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

                                                                             Seconded by Councillor Fraser  

THAT By-law 2016-22, being a By-law for the stopping up and closing of a highway 

in Concession IV Lots 5 & 6 former Township of Mountain be read and passed in 

Open Council, signed and sealed this 8th day of March, 2016. 

CARRIED 

 

Resolution No. 24                                                  Moved by Councillor Fraser  

                                                                               Seconded by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

THAT By-law 2016-25, being a By-law authorizing the signing of a Master 

Communications Agreement and a Bell Business Internet Dedicated Service 

Schedule and /or a Bell Business Internet Package Schedule with Bell Canada Inc. 

for EORN RFP P-01-2015 for the provision of high speed internet services the 

municipal office at 636 St. Lawrence Street, Winchester, be read and passed in 

Open Council, signed and sealed this 8th day of March, 2016 . 

CARRIED 

 

9. Consent Agenda  

Resolution No. 25                                             Moved by Councillor Fraser  

                                                                            Seconded by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

THAT Council authorize the payment of accounts as per the attached Council 

Report dated March 7, 2016, Batch 31 to 51 in the amount of $599,058.93; and  

THAT all other items listed under the Consent Agenda section of the Agenda be 

approved as recommended. 

CARRIED 

 

10. Boards and Committees  

Art on the Waterfront – Councillor Thompson reported plans are progressing for the 

2016 festival which will be held in Chesterville on June 4th and 5th.  

 

11. Key Information 

Proposed Building Permit Fees 

PBB Director Pol will provide a summary of the comments received relating to the 

proposed charges for building permits fees at an upcoming meeting. 

 

 

 

Regular Meeting March 8, 2016

Page 9 of 67



 

Review of Ball Diamond, Soccer Field and Slab Rates 

RC Director Meerburg provided a rental rate comparison chart showing information 

that had been collected from surrounding municipalities. Council was asked to review 

the information and provide feedback to Director Meerburg. 

 

Morewood Community Centre 

RC Director Meerburg provided an update regarding the current status of the water 

damage at the Morewood Community Hall and listed future repair and renovation 

considerations along with affiliated costs. Councillor Armstrong stated, although very 

preliminary, he feels there is potential for a community minded group to rally support 

in an effort to save the Morewood Community Centre.  He and Councillor Thompson 

are talking to potential supporters. 

 

Ice Allocation Policy  

RC Director Meerburg sought direction from Council with regard to items of 

consideration for the draft Ice Allocation Policy. Council directed Staff to use the 

2014/15 ice schedule as a reference for historical use. A draft policy is to be created 

by RC Director Meerburg for review by Councillors Thompson and Fraser and CAO 

Rutley and then presented to Council. 

 

Road Tour 

PWS Director Belleau invited Council to go on a road tour to discuss the road 

construction and resurfacing projects slated for 2016. Council will make arrangements 

with Director Belleau. 

 

12. Motions and Notices of Motions - Nil  

 

13. Petitions - Nil 

 

14. Council Comments and Concerns  

Pie Auction 

Councillor Fraser advised the Winchester Fire 8th Annual Pie Auction will take place 

Wednesday, March 23, 2016 at 7:00 pm at the Winchester Fire Station. 

 

15. Unfinished Business - Nil  

 

 

 

 

 

Regular Meeting March 8, 2016

Page 10 of 67



 

16. Closed Session  

Resolution No. 26                                 Moved by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

                                                                        Seconded by Councillor Fraser  

THAT Council proceed in Camera at 9:15pm to discuss matters as per Section 239 

(2) of The Municipal Act as amended, which pertains to: 

(b) personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local 

board employees; 

(c) a proposed or pending acquisition or disposition of land by the municipality or 

local board; 

CARRIED 

 

 

Resolution No. 27                                 Moved by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

                                                                        Seconded by Councillor Fraser  

THAT Council move to Open Session at 10:21 pm. 

CARRIED 

 

 

 

Resolution No. 28                                        Moved by Councillor Fraser  

                                                                                Seconded by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

THAT Council authorizes Staff to follow through on matters as discussed in closed 

session. 

CARRIED 

 

17. Ratification By-law  

Resolution No. 29                                             Moved by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

                                                                             Seconded by Councillor Fraser  

THAT By-law No. 2016-24 to adopt, confirm and ratify matters dealt with by 

resolution, be read and passed in Open Council, signed and sealed this 8th day of 

March, 2016. 

CARRIED 

 

18. Adjournment by Resolution  

Resolution No. 30                                        Moved by Deputy Mayor Boyce 

                                                                             Seconded by Councillor Fraser  

THAT Council adjourn to the call of the chair. 

CARRIED 

 

 

 

Regular Meeting March 8, 2016

Page 11 of 67



______________________                                            ____________________ 

Mayor                                                                             Clerk 

Regular Meeting March 8, 2016

Page 12 of 67



TOWNSHIP OF NORTH DUNDAS 
PUBLIC MEETING TO CONSIDER PROPOSED CHANGES TO PERMIT 

FEES 
March 8, 2016 

6:30 pm 
  

 
A Public Meeting of Council, under Section 7 (6) the Building Code Act was held to 
consider proposed changes to building permit fees.  
Roll Call: 

Eric Duncan                           Present 
Gerry Boyce                           Present 
Allan Armstrong                     Present 
Tony Fraser                           Present 
John Thompson                     Present 

 
Township of North Dundas Staff present included CAO, Angela Rutley; Township Planner, 
Calvin Pol; Chief Building Official, Greg Trizisky and Clerk, Jo-Anne McCaslin who 
recorded the minutes.  
 
Chairperson, Duncan called for a motion to open the public meeting.  
 

Moved by Allan Armstrong and seconded by John Thompson that the 
Public Meeting of Council to consider building permit fees to order at 
6:30 pm.  
CARRIED. 
 

Chairperson Duncan then turned the meeting over to Township Planner, Calvin Pol. 
 

Planner, Calvin Pol explained that Section 7 (6) of the Building Code Act requires if a 
Council proposes to change any fee imposed, they shall give notice of the proposed 
changes in fees to such persons as may be prescribed; and hold a public meeting 
concerning the proposed changes. He advised this public meeting was advertised in the 
Winchester Press and Chesterville Record on February 17, 2016 in accordance with 
Section 1.9.1.2 of Ontario Regulation 332/12. Notice was also placed on the Township of 
North Dundas website. All contractors on the Township’s contact list were notified by 
email. 
 
An Attendance Sheet was circulated to members of the public in attendance to hear the 
presentation. 
 
A Key Information Report prepared by Chief Building Official, Greg Trizisky was previously 
provided to Council. Township Planner Calvin Pol and Chief Building Official, Greg Trizisky 
presented a power point presentation outlining the proposed changes to permit fees. 
 
Planner Pol stated Section 7(1) of the Building Code Act authorizes Council to pass by-
laws to impose fees for permits. Section 7(2) states that the total amount of fees authorized  

Public Meeting March 8 To Consider Proposed Changes to Permit Fees

Page 13 of 67



                                                                                                                                        BPF Public Meeting Mar 8/16 Page 2 of 3 

 
 
under Section 7(1) may not exceed the anticipated reasonable costs to administer and 
enforce the Act. Further, he stated all comments and written submissions will be collected 
and submitted to Council on March 16, 2016, followed by a report and draft by-law 
amending the Fee By-law will be prepared and presented to Council on March 22, 2016.  

 
Chief Building Official, Greg Trizisky reviewed a summary of area charges and proposed 
changes. 
 
Councillors Armstrong & Fraser questioned the rational for the proposed new fee 
suggested for 62X80 Industrial Repair Garage value at $457,000. 
 
Greg provided some detail but requested to report back to Council with more details on March 
22, 2016. 
 
Members of the public were invited to review the summary sheets displayed in the  
Council Chambers.   
 
Moved by Tony Fraser and seconded by Gerry Boyce that the Public Meeting of 
Council to consider building permit fees at 6:53 pm.                                                                           
CARRIED.   
  
     
                                                                                              
                    Eric Duncan, CHAIRPERSON 
 
 
 
 
  
                                                                    
                                                                                        Jo-Anne McCaslin, CLERK  

Public Meeting March 8 To Consider Proposed Changes to Permit Fees

Page 14 of 67



TOWNSHIP OF NORTH DUNDAS 
PUBLIC MEETING TO CONSIDER TWO ZONING AMENDMENTS 

March 8, 2016 
7:00 pm  

 
A Public Meeting of Council, under Section 34 of the Planning Act, R.S.O. 1990, as 
amended was held to consider two proposed zoning amendments; one to the former 
Village of Chesterville Zoning By-law No. 04-95 and one to the former Village of 
Winchester Zoning By-law No. 25-95.    
 
Roll Call:         

 Eric Duncan                 Present    
                     Gerry Boyce                                      Present    
                     Allan Armstrong                                          Present    
                     Tony Fraser                                       Present 
 John Thompson                        Present 

 
Township of North Dundas Staff present included CAO, Angela Rutley; Township Planner, 
Calvin Pol and Clerk, Jo-Anne McCaslin who recorded the minutes.  
 
Applicants Chris Sommerville and Mohammed El-Khatib were in attendance for the public 
meeting.  
 
Chairperson, Duncan called for a motion to open the public meeting.  
 

Moved by Gerry Boyce and seconded by Tony Fraser that the Public 
Meeting of Council to consider two Zoning By-law Amendments; one 
to the former Village of Chesterville Zoning By-law No. Township of 
Mountain Zoning By-law No. 04-95 and one to the former Village of 
Winchester Zoning By-law 25-96 be called to order at 7:00 pm. 
CARRIED. 

 
The Chairperson confirmed that in accordance with Section 34 of the Planning Act and 
Ontario Regulation 545/06, a Public Notice was mailed out, faxed and a sign posted 
on February 16th for Chris Sommerville’s application, after rescheduling the February 16th 
Public Meeting due to inclement weather. A Public Notice was mailed out, faxed and a 
sign posted on February 12th for Mohammed El-Khatib’s application.  
 
The Chairperson declared the meeting properly constituted as per the requirements of the 
Planning Act and called the meeting to order.  Attendance sheets were circulated.   
 
Two detailed planning reports and draft by-laws prepared by Township Planner, Calvin Pol 
were previously circulated to Council. The Chairperson then turned the meeting over to 
Mr. Pol who then made a power point presentation outlining the Chris Sommerville 
proposed amendment. 
 
It was pointed out by the Planner that if a person or public body does not make oral 
submissions at this public meeting or make written submissions to North Dundas Township  

Public Meeting March 8 To Consider Two Zoning Amendments

Page 15 of 67



                                                                                                                                         Public Meeting March 8/16 page 2 of 6 

 
before the by-law is passed, the person or public body may not be entitled to appeal the 
decision of the Council of North Dundas to the Ontario Municipal Board. 
 
Planner, Calvin Pol explained the Chris Sommerville Amendment: 

  
The Township of North Dundas received a site specific application to amend the former 
Village of Chesterville Zoning By-law No. 04-95, as amended, to rezone lands from 
General Commercial – Exception Five  (CG-x5) to General Commercial – Exception Nine 
(CG-X9). 
 
The area affected by this by-law, known as 13 Chesterville Queen Street, is described as 
Part of Lots 105, 106, and 107 on Plan 35 Block A, Parts 2, 3, 5, and 6 on Reference Plan 
8R-1867, former Village of Chesterville, now the Township of North Dundas, County of 
Dundas. 
 
The purpose of the amendment is to rezone the subject property to allow three (3) 
residential units, instead of two (2), and to allow for a reduction in the minimum floor area 
required for the proposed new residential unit. 
 
The property/land to which the proposed Zoning By-law amendment applies is not the 
subject of any other application under the Planning Act at this time. However, the 
development is subject to Site Plan Control under By-law No. 65-98. 
 
No comments or objections have been received to date under Section 34(15) of the       
Planning Act from Ministries and Public Bodies.    
 
A neighbour expressed concerns over the loss of privacy with an addition dwelling unit in 
his side yard (verbal) and parking. 
 
The Chairperson asked the Applicant and Members of Council if they had any questions 
or concerns and then opened the Public Meeting to questions and comments from the 
public. 
 
There were no comments from Applicant, Chris Sommerville and no questions or 
comments from Members of Council. 
 
Edgar Lefebvre, 17 Chesterville Queen St. stated he does not feel there is room on the 
property for another tenant and has experienced previous problems with Mr. Sommerville 
since the conversion of the laundry mat to residential. Other problems noted were dogs 
running on his property, flooding in his garage, insufficient space for parking and privacy 
issues.  
 
Planner Pol advised these concerns will be reviewed and addressed under site plan 
control. 
 
 

Public Meeting March 8 To Consider Two Zoning Amendments

Page 16 of 67



                                                                                                                                         Public Meeting March 8/16 page 3 of 6 

 
Chris Sommerville, 13 Chesterville Queen St. advised the flooding occurred on Mr. 
Lefebvre’s property before he (Chris) owned it (he has pictures to prove). He stated there 
is parking for 6 cars and that dogs running on Mr. Lefebvre’s property do not belong to his 
tenants. 
 
Chairperson Duncan thanked those present and stated the by-law would be considered 
during the regular meeting of Council.   
 
Mr. Pol then explained the Mohammed El-Khatib Amendment 
The Township of North Dundas received a site specific application to amend the former 
Village of Winchester Zoning By-law No. 25-96, as amended, to rezone lands from General 
Commercial (C1) to Residential Type 4 – Exception Nine (R4-9). 
 
The lands affected by this rezoning are legally described as Part of Lots 48 and 49, Plan 
34, and Part 1 of Plan 8R-3611, former Village of Winchester, now the Township of North 
Dundas, County of Dundas, known as 505 Winchester Church Street.   
  
The purpose of the amendment is to rezone the subject property to permit six (6) 
residential units, the exception zone will allow one undersized residential unit and increase 
the maximum density.  
 
The property/land to which the proposed Zoning By-law amendment applies is not the 
subject of any other application under the Planning Act at this time. However, the 
development is subject to Site Plan Control under By-law 65-98. 

 
The Zoning By-law requires a minimum of 8 parking spaces for a six (6) unit apartment. 
The site plan submitted with the zoning amendment application shows 8 parking spaces; 
however, no dimensions are shown.  On February 26, 2016, using the legal survey and 
on-site measurements, it was determined that the parking area does meet with the 
minimum standards contained in the Zoning By-law.   
 
Secondly, while conducting a review of the draft site plan and looking at aerial 
photography, it was determined that the neighbouring property (501 Winchester Church 
Street) uses the parking lot from 505 Winchester Church Street to access their parking 
spaces in the rear yard.  A property record search revealed that there is a registered 
easement (right-of-way) enabling the owners of 501 Winchester Church Street to use the 
parking lot to access their rear yard parking by motor vehicle or by foot.   

 
The proposal from the apartment applicant was to use this rear area for parking spaces 
for his tenants (part of the 8 spaces).  Under the owner’s legal obligations, he cannot block 
access to the rear yard of 501 Winchester Church Street.  At least two proposed parking 
spaces must be removed, therefore he will not have the required 8 parking spaces for the 
6 apartment units.  Also, a portion of the existing parking area must be converted to green 
space for the use of the tenants (private amenity area for the tenants – could also serve 
as a snow storage area in the winter month).   
 

Public Meeting March 8 To Consider Two Zoning Amendments

Page 17 of 67



                                                                                                                                         Public Meeting March 8/16 page 4 of 6 

Opposition to the rezoning has been received from the North Dundas Chamber of 
Commerce. They have expressed concern that the conversion would pave the way for 
more conversions in the future, also that parking would be an issue with this site. 

 
No other comments or objections under Section 34 (15) of the Planning Act have been 
received to date. One verbal inquiry was received by the Clerk.  
 
Based on these new findings since the public notice was mailed out, it is recommended 
that Council postpone any decision regarding the subject property, until the parking issues 
and site plan issues are resolved.  The draft by-law will need to be amended to reflect any 
changes made or to recognize existing or new deficiencies.  If Council were to pass the 
draft by-law in its current format, minor variances would be required to address any 
deficiencies.  
 
The Chairperson asked the Applicant and Members of Council if they had any questions 
or concerns and then opened the Public Meeting to questions and comments from the 
public. 
 
There were no questions from the Applicant. 
 
Councillor Armstrong stated he has a concern about losing commercial space in the 
downtown core and asked if there was any way the Applicant could keep a mix of 
commercial and residential on the property. 
 
Deputy Mayor Boyce asked if 8 parking spaces are required. 
 
Planner Pol replied 6 units require 8 parking spaces. 
 
Chairperson Duncan asked if landscaping is required. 
 
Planner Pol replied yes. 
 
Chairperson Duncan asked if the Applicant has the option to use the municipal parking lot 
adjacent to the property. 
 
Planner Pol replied yes. Cash-in-lieu of parking can be considered.  
 
Councillor Fraser asked for a clarification of the Provincial Policy Statement (PPS) policy 
direction regarding residential intensification. 
 
Planner Pol noted the PPS don’t speak to specifically commercial; they are set up for large 
cities like Toronto to encourage residential intensification. 
 
Councillor Armstrong commented the PPS are more allowing than advocating. He also 
noted it is difficult to enforce parking. (Municipal parking lot) 
 
 

Public Meeting March 8 To Consider Two Zoning Amendments

Page 18 of 67



                                                                                                                                         Public Meeting March 8/16 page 5 of 6 

 
Planner Pol agreed stating overnight snow removal is difficult in municipal parking lots with 
parked cars. 
 
Councillor Thompson commented he does not want to see the entire building zoning 
residential. 
 
Deputy Mayor Boyce agreed. 
 
Chairperson Duncan asked Planner Pol to work with the applicant to resolve expressed 
issues. 
 
Questions from the Public: 
Gregory Van Dellen, 501 Winchester Church St., would like to see the commercial space 
remain.  Feels the conversion to residential would cause increased parking problems on 
Church Street. 
 
Ed Puddephatt, 514 Winchester Church St., spoke on behalf of the North Dundas 
Chamber of Commerce stating the membership does not support the conversion of 
commercial space to residential space (letter from Chamber of Commerce on file). With 
regard to parking concerns, Mr. Puddephatt noted apartment dwellers in the area are 
parking their vehicles in the municipal parking lot, thereby taking spaces away from 
businesses.  
 
Mr. Cullen spoke on behalf of Alexander Hodgins and Patrick Jeaurond of 507 Winchester 
Church St., stated the integrity of his property is a concern and that the driveway needs to 
be accessible. Safety concerns noted due to in adequate space between properties. 
 
Planner Pol stated safety between buildings, fire routes need to be considered. 
 
Greg McIntosh, 502 Winchester Victoria St. commented he has concerns about excessive 
noise that comes from residential intensification.  
 
Planner Pol advised the recently passed Nuisance By-law addresses noise. 
 
Chairperson Duncan noted it is hard to get a conviction for noise. 
 
Mohammad El-Khatib, 2312 Blackstone Cres, Ottawa, (Applicant) stated he has owned 
the building for 3 years. It has been very difficult to attract commercial tenants. He 
concluded there are residential dwellings on both sides of his property and across the 
street. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Meeting March 8 To Consider Two Zoning Amendments

Page 19 of 67



                                                                                                                                         Public Meeting March 8/16 page 6 of 6 

 
 
 
Chairperson Duncan thanked those who spoke and stated the recommendation to defer 
decision on this matter would be considered during the regular meeting of Council.   
 

Moved by Gerry Boyce and seconded by Tony Fraser that the Public 
Meeting of Council to consider two Zoning By-law Amendments 
adjourn at 7:44 pm.   
CARRIED. 

 
        
 
 
 
                                                                                          
              Eric Duncan, CHAIRPERSON 
 
 
  
                                                         
                                                                                    Jo-Anne McCaslin, CLERK   

Public Meeting March 8 To Consider Two Zoning Amendments

Page 20 of 67



Dundas Federation of Agriculture

Page 21 of 67



Dundas Federation of Agriculture

Page 22 of 67



Dundas Federation of Agriculture

Page 23 of 67



Dundas Federation of Agriculture

Page 24 of 67



Dundas Federation of Agriculture

Page 25 of 67




